MEMORANDUM

TO: Michael Houghton, Select Board Chair
Joseph Lovejoy, Select Board Vice-Chair
Allison Knab, Select Board

FROM: David Moore, Town Administrator
DATE: January 29, 2021
RE: Select Board Agenda and Materials for the February 1, 2021 Regular Meeting

Please allow this memorandum to serve as a guide to the Select Board Meeting agenda for
February 1, 2021.

1. Consideration of Minutes

Draft minutes from your meeting on January 25, 2021 have been submitted for your acceptance.
We are still drafting minutes for your regular meeting on January 19,

IV.  Treasurer Report (first meeting of the month)
The Treasurer’s Report is attached.
V. Department Reports & Presentations
Parks & Recreation Director Seth Hickey will give his department report. Please find materials
enclosed in support of his report. The next Departmental report on March 1st is scheduled to
be the Library.
VI.  Correspondence
A. Email from Bill Martel re: Parcel 18-042-000
B. E-mail from Kim Tortoriello dated January 9, 2021 re: unleased dogs on trails at SHP
C. E-mail from Elizabeth Graciano-Smith dated January 27, 2021 re: Trail Inventory and
Assessment at SHP
VII.  Public Comment

VIIIl. Public Hearings, Ordinances and/or Resolutions

IX.  Discussion of Monthly Reports (second meeting of each month)



X. New Business and Action ltems

A. PFAS Remedial Action Plan & Groundwater Management Permit Application
Review and Discussion

Mr. Russ Barton and Mr. Jim Ricker will be in attendance at your meeting on Monday to review
the draft Remedial Action Plan for the PFAS contamination in Town Center. They have prepared
a presentation, which is attached to this memo. In addition, | will attach the full draft RAP

document (provided to you previously) to my e-mail transmitting your packet.

B. Review of 2019 Audit

Prior to the budget discussion, Finance Administrator Dawna Duhamel will review the 2019
Financial Statements with the Board. The 2019 Financial Statements are attached to this
memo.

C. Review of BAC feedback and Budget discussion
Ms. Duhamel and | will be prepared at your meeting to discuss budget materials in hopes that the
discussion will result in final or near final guidance related to preparing a budget of the February
8" public hearing. As of this writing, | have not received an additional submittal from the BAC,
if such a communication comes, | will forward it immediately.

D. Upcoming Meeting and Dates: 2" Select Board Meeting in February and February 8"
public hearing preparations

I hope to review meeting logistics and get input from Board members on these meetings.
E. Town Meeting — Scheduling and preparations

I am waiting for key meeting location availability from the SAU related to Town Meeting dates
(and times). | hope to have all of the options available to you on Monday.

F. Next Steps Discussion Trail Management Plan Follow-up (May take place under
Department report)

Action under this item (as you feel appropriate) may take place during the departmental report.
Also, the Board could obtain information during the Departmental report and act later in the
meeting. | believe at least one member of the public may avail themselves of the conference line
for this SB meeting pertaining to this subject.

G. Signatures — Land Use Change Tax Warrants

Interim Assessor Chris Murdough has prepared six additional LUCT warrants for the Board’s
signature.



XI.  Town Administrator Report

I plan to present you with a number of updates on Town business. If you have any particular
items of business you would like to make sure | am prepared to cover, please let me know. We
will also need a non-public session for this meeting.

XIl. Informational ltems

A. Legislative Preview
B. FEMA letter

XIIl. Reservations, Event Requests & Permits
None for this meeting.
XIV. Review of Recent or Upcoming Board & Commissions Agendas
XV. Boards and Commissions Nominations & Appointments
None for this meeting
XV. Miscellaneous & Old Business
A. Open Items Tracking

XVI. Adjournment



TOWN OF STRATHAM

INCORPORATED 1716
10 BUNKER HiLL AVENUE e STRATHAM NH 03885

VOICE (603) 772-7391 » FAX (603) 775-0517

SELECT BOARD AGENDA
FEBRUARY 1, 2021
7:00 P.M.

Hutton Room, Stratham Municipal Center
10 Bunker Hill Avenue- Stratham, NH 03885

This meeting of the Select Board will be held in the Hutton Room of the Stratham
Municipal Center

The public may access this meeting at the date and time above using this conference call
information. Please dial the conference number (877) 205 7349 and input 2254 when prompted
for a user pin/code.

COVID Public Meeting Notice
This meeting is scheduled to be held “in person” at the Stratham Municipal Center. In
accordance with this notice, if the Chair makes a determination to hold this meeting remotely
notice will be published by 3:30 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

Per NH RSA 91-A:2 Il (b) the Chair has declared COVID-19 Outbreak an emergency and has
waived the requirement that a quorum be physically present at the meeting pursuant to the
Governor’s Executive Order 2020-04, Section 8, as extended by Executive Order 2020-20, and
Emergency Order #12, Section 3. Members will be participating remotely and will identify their
location and any person present with them at that location. All votes will be by roll call.

If at any time during the meeting you have difficulty hearing the proceedings, please e-mail
dmoore@strathamnh.gov.

To access materials related to this meeting, please see this link:
https://www.strathamnh.gov/select-board

l. Call to order
1. Roll Call

1. Consideration of Minutes — January 25, 2021

The Select Board reserves the right to take up business in any order deemed appropriate by the Chair. A motion to
enter Non-Public Session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3 may occur at any time during the meeting. Submission of
items to be placed on the Agenda must be to the Town Administrator by 4 pm the Wednesday before the scheduled
meeting.



https://www.strathamnh.gov/select-board

VI.

VII.

VIIIL.

XI.

XII.

XII.

XIV.

TOWN OF STRATHAM

INCORPORATED 1716
10 BUNKER HiLL AVENUE e STRATHAM NH 03885

VOICE (603) 772-7391 » FAX (603) 775-0517

Treasurer Report (first meeting of the month)
The Treasurer’s Report is enclosed.

Department Reports & Presentations
Parks & Recreation Director Seth Hickey

Correspondence

A. Email from Bill Martel re: Parcel 18-042-000

B. E-mail from Kim Tortoriello dated January 9, 2021 re: unleased dogs on trails at SHP
C. E-mail from Elizabeth Graciano-Smith dated January 27, 2021 re: Trail Inventory and
Assessment at SHP

Public Comment
Public Hearings, Ordinances and/or Resolutions
Discussion of Monthly Reports — (second meeting of the Month)

New Business and Action Items

PFAS Remedial Action Plan & Groundwater Management Permit Application
Review and Discussion

Review of 2019 Audit

Review of BAC feedback and Budget discussion

Upcoming Meeting and Dates: 2" Select Board Meeting in February and February 8™
public hearing preparations

Town Meeting — Scheduling and preparations

Next Steps Discussion SHP Trail Inventory and Assessment Follow-up (May take
place under Department report)

G. Signatures — Land Use Change Tax Warrants

Cow >

nm

Town Administrator Report

Informational Items

A. Legislative Preview from NHMA

B. FEMA letter re: FIRM map changes

C. Seacoast Drinking Water Commission Charge and recent minutes
Reservations, Event Requests & Permits

Review of Recent or Upcoming Board & Commissions Agendas



TOWN OF STRATHAM

INCORPORATED 1716
10 BUNKER HiLL AVENUE e STRATHAM NH 03885

VOICE (603) 772-7391 » FAX (603) 775-0517

XV. Boards and Commissions Nominations & Appointments
XVI. Miscellaneous & Old Business

A. PFAS in Town Center (see above)

B. Open Items Tracking

XVII. Adjournment



MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 25, 2021 SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SELECT
BOARD

MEMBERS PARTICIPATING: Board Members Chair Mike Houghton, Vice Chair Joe
Lovejoy, Board Member Allison Knab along with Town Administrator David Moore.

The Board Chair opened the meeting at 3:00 p.m. He then recognized the Town Administrator
for the Town Administrator report.

Mr. Moore requested action on Land Use Change Tax forms; specifically, abating and reissuing
LUCT tax bills to the developer of the new residential development on Taylor Court. Mr.
Lovejoy moved to approve the request. Ms. Knab seconded the motion. All voted in favor.
(Abatements and reissuances were executed for 1 and 3 Taylor Court).

At 3:20 pm Chair Houghton moved to go into non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-
A:3, 1l (a). Mr. Lovejoy seconded the motion; all voted in favor.

The Board emerged from non-public session at 5:15 p.m. Ms. Knab voted to seal the minutes,
noting that failure to do so would render a proposed action ineffective. Mr. Lovejoy
seconded. All voted in favor.

The meeting was adjourned at 5:16 p.m.



Town of Stratham - Finance Held Accounts

(This list does not include accounts held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds, or Library Funds)

Balances as of 12/31/2020

Account Name: Bank: Balance
General Fund Citizen's $3,513,917.50
Payroll Citizen's $100,664.82
Investment Account Citizen's $11,407,518.18
NHPDIP Investment (Town) NHPDIP $21,136.32
NHPDIP (Recreation Funds) NHPDIP $4,188.50
NHPDIP (EMS) NHPDIP $51,470.97
Mobil Cistern TD Bank $33,810.57
200 Domain Drive Landscape Bond People's Bank $2,548.79
Betty Lane Construction Bond People's Bank $0.00
Betty Lane Performance Bond People's Bank $0.00
Bunker Hill Commons Fire Cistern People's Bank $8,017.69
Cemetery Land Fund People's Bank $7,502.79
Drug Forfieture Fund People's Bank $33.26
EMS Fund People's Bank $353,851.91
Fire Protection Fund People's Bank $47,287.39
Foss Property Sec. Dep. People's Bank $3,658.75
Gifford House Sec. Deposit People's Bank $2,113.21
Heritage Fund People's Bank $6,950.34
Jacqueline Way People's Bank $0.00
Kennebunk Savings Landscape Bond People's Bank $1,016.87
Kennebunk Savings Performance (Maint) Bond People's Bank $2,542.19
Lindt Offsite Improvements People's Bank $1,260.02
Park Cottage Sec. Dep. People's Bank $967.63
Police Detail Fund People's Bank $102,187.40
Recreation Revolving People's Bank $134,910.73
SHP Revolving Fund People's Bank $40,754.09
Stratham DARE People's Bank $7,696.29
Varsity Wireless Historic Sign People's Bank $8,552.85
Total: $15,864,559.06
** Mulitiple Bonds Account/DESA
Bond Name
Altid Enterprises People's Bank $11,192.01
Barbaras Way_2020 People's Bank $18,507.73
Bond Checking (Multiple ) People's Bank $0.00
Bunker Hill Ave Improvements People's Bank $17,198.91
GCNE People's Bank $35,259.17
Green Solar Surety People's Bank $4,401.91
Jotaph Realty People's Bank $22,703.54
Murphy Lane People's Bank $2.69
NHSPCA People's Bank $357,718.15
Robie Farms People's Bank $194,962.54
Tansy Ave People's Bank $7,083.99
Winterberry Cistern People's Bank $941.07

Total:

Total:

Treasurer

$669,971.71

$16,534,530.77

Closed 11/2020
Closed 11/2020

Closed 3/2020

New 10/2020

New 9/2020

New 8/2020
New 8/2020
New 8/2020

Balance 01/27/2021

$785,014

$193,348
$12,007,518
$12,985,880

Balance 12/30/2019

516,118,758

NHPDIP
Current Seven Day Yield

1/22/2021
0.02%




From: Bill Martel

To: David Moore

Subject: Re: 18-042-000

Date: Monday, January 25, 2021 11:24:41 AM
Mr Moore,

| am writing regarding property parcel 18-042-000. This property is listed for sale however it is “land
locked”. | am requesting that this matter be brought up at the next meeting of the Town Selectmen.

From looking at the AxisGis maps on the Town website, it seems like the simplest solution would be
to access parcel 42 via Gifford Farm Rd. An access of easement would be needed along the high
voltage power lines south of the school in parcel #106. From there, the potential driveway could:
-turn along the shared lot line of #40 (owned by the School District) and #41 (owned by Jeffery
Dean)

-turn along the shared line of #40 and #39 (owned by the Town).

I would like to ask the Board if they are willing to explore authorizing roadway access across Town-
owned land to facilitate the construction of a single-family home on parcel 42.

| am a Greenland native and current Portsmouth resident. | loved growing up here and am eager to
give my family a chance to do the same in what would be our first owned home. I've always had a
great admiration for Stratham and have particularly heard great things about your school system. I'd
love to offer my kids that as my oldest enters kindergarten this fall.

| personally have not laid eyes on the property and frankly am not aware of its potential to be built
on so my decision to purchase weighs equally on that. It has also been brought to my attention that
the Stratham Hill Trail system runs through #42. Assuming that in #42’s 6+ acreage there is still
ample room for a modest home and private yard, | would love nothing more than to not impede on
the easement that the trail system has on that parcel.

| would love to help my family become a part of the Stratham community while at the same time
building a home that is “ours”. However | will need some help overcoming this hurdle.

| sincerely appreciate your time and consideration..
Best,

Bl Martel

603.969.1925

12 Harding Rd.
Portsmouth, NH 03801
Bill@MartelPower.com

On Mon, Jan 25, 2021 at 10:00 AM David Moore <dmoore@strathamnh.gov> wrote:


mailto:bill@martelpower.com
mailto:dmoore@StrathamNH.gov
mailto:dmoore@strathamnh.gov

Unleashed Dogs

Kim TORTORIELLO <kimberleetorres@comcast.net>
Sat 1/9/2021 9:47 AM

To: Seth Hickey <SHickey@StrathamNH.gov>

Hello Seth,

Thank you again for taking the time to foilow up with me yesterday after | called to discuss dogs
being off leash in the trails around Stratham Hill Park. As you requested, the intention of this
email is to summarize our discussion for consideration of changing the current palicy.

Our family bought our home at 2 Long Hill Rd about 5 years ago. The biggest selling point for
us relative to this specific location was our access to the trails at the top of Long Hill Rd. Really,
those miles of trails were our biggest selling point for moving to Stratham at all. For the past 5
years, we have enjoyed hiking and biking those trails daily. My daughter attends SMS and we
often walk the trails to school. We walk/bike for miles daily and it an integral part of our lives.
Over the past 2 years, we have grown more and more frustrated by the amount of unleashed
dogs in the woods. It has been a problem the entire time we've lived here, but has increasingly
gotten so bad that we are becoming fearful to even enter the woods at all.

We are being repeatedly attacked and terrorized by unleashed dogs. | cannot even count the
amount of times we have been walking in the woods to be rushed by multiple unieashed dogs
that jump on us, my young daughter and my leashed dog. We have been scratched, given
poison ivy and my dog has been bitten by these dogs. My dog is now displaying behavioral
issues from being attacked so many times--unable to defend herself from an unleashed dog
who's owner is hundreds of yards away. By the time they run over (if they even do), and try to
pull the dog away--the damage has been done.

We wear neon colors when walking so people can spot us from far away and we ask people to
leash their dogs when approaching. Some are kind and put their dogs on a leash.
Unfortunately, many do not. Most of the time the owner is so far away--the dog just comes
barreling at us and we don't even see it's owner. Many people just shrug or don't respond at alll.
| actually had one woman tefl me she didn't even bring a leash with her. Sometimes they are on
a bike--and cannot do anything from their bike to control the situation.

I'am tired of being terrorized and attacked in the woods. | thought of bringing pepper spray with
me and spraying any dog that comes near me or just grab a large stick to hit them-- but as a
woman walking alone with her dog in the woods, | fear that trying to protect myself would be
seen as an act of aggrassion by these people (who are committing acts of aggression by
allowing this to happen) and | could potentially be attacked by an angry dog owner in retaliation.
| am left with no recourse other than writing this letter and discontinuing enjoying the trails |
specifically moved here to access. it is extremely frustrating.

It feels to me like these bullies are protected and those of us who simply want to enjoy the
woods have to either be fearful and be continuously attacked, or just stay out of the woods
entirely, It is not right. In this day and age--we cannot allow bullies to terrorize others like this.
There are way too many incidents to try and describe, so | will outline the latest that have
occurred over the past week.

Last week, | had 4 dogs off leash surround me and my dog and attack us. Their owner, a young
man who seemed not to have even one leash {or a mask on)---came running and tried to
control them--but it was too late. My poor dog had to try and fight off 4 dogs. | tried to kick them



off. | was screaming at the top of my lungs. It was terrifying. The man then proceeded to try and
pull them off of me and my dog. But how do you even puli 4 unleashed dogs off on one leashed
dog?? Of course, the man wasn't wearing a mask, so | was potentially exposed to COVID as a
result. | told the man if he can't control his dogs, he shouldn't have them off leash. He didn't
even respond or apologize. But really —can anyone control a pack of 4 dogs running unleashed
in the woods--even friendly dogs? It was inevitable they would come barreling towards us and
we would be put in a very scary situation, even if they hadn't attacked us.

Yesterday, at about 8 in the morning, a man with 2 dogs off leash attempted to grab one.when
he saw me and my leashed dog, but the other dog ran towards us and proceeded to attack. |
screamed for him to control his dog and he came running, but had difficultly since he had 2
dogs he was trying to control. He also got within 3 feet of my face ~-breathing hard because he
had sprinted up the trail to get his dog. So again, | have had potential exposure to COVID since
he wasn't wearing a mask.

| wear a mask in the woods. The trails are narrow and bikers fly by and people often don't move
off the trail as you pass. There is a mandate in NH to wear a mask when you cannot keep at
least 6 feet distance. If the town of Stratham refuses to change the policy of allowing unleashed
dogs--you are putting us at risk. To protect the so-called "rights" of these dog owners that want
to allow other people to be terrorized, you are putting us at risk. You are aware that unleashed
dogs often get into altercations and owners need to untangle the dogs, which puts them within
close proximity--much closer than 6 feet. You are knowingly allowing a dangerous situation to
continue amidst this pandemic. At the very least, the town should institute a temporary leash
mandate through the woods while discussions are unfolding for a more permanent solution.

You mentioned there are many people in this town who think it is their right, as taxpayers, to
walk their dogs unleashed through these trails. It is not a right. They are acting entitled. We as
citizens have a right to feel safe in our woods. As a taxpayer myself, | strongly disagree. My
family should not be attacked by unieashed dogs when trying to enjoy these beautiful
woods.The trails should be safe and enjoyed by all. Sure, | would LOVE to let my very friendly
dog run free through the woods, but | care about other people. | don't want my dog to potentially
scare someone, even though | think she is a friendly dog. It's called common courtesy and
being a good neighbor and citizen--especially in the middle of this pandemic.

More and more, | hear people saying they no longer go in the woods for fear of these
irresponsible people and their dogs. You said the same yourself. That's crazy. We should not let
this group of people terrorize us. | understand some might argue they shouldn't be punished
just because other people have viscous dogs. Unfortunately, that is how it needs to be. In towns
and cities, you can't have dogs running unleashed because some will cause harm. The same is
true on these trails. The few (or frankly a lot more than a few) have ruined it for those might
have been able to control their dogs. As a compromise, there could be a designated area for
dogs like the field by the bike trail, but it is unjust to give them all the miles of trails that we so
enjoy, and leave us nothing but Stratham Hill Park proper.

I'm not someone who writes letters of complaint. | try to go with the flow most of the time, but
enough is enough. This situation is out of control, so I've been forced to take a hours out of my
day on a Saturday to write this letter in hopes action will be taken.

Please do not wait until someone is seriously hurt before protecting us. Please do not continue
to put citizens at risk of contracting COVID due to the frequency and proximity of contact that is
required when these dogs attack.

When there is a public discussion regarding this topic, 1 would be happy to participate.



SnowHawk LLC Trail Inventory & Assessment

Elizabeth Graciano-Smith <egraciano@comcast.net>
Wed 1/27/2021 7.24 PM

To: Seth Hickey <SHickey@StrathamNH.gov>

Cc: aknab@strathamnh.gov <aknab@strathamnh.gov>; jlovejoy@strathamnh.gov
<jlovejoy@strathamnh.gov>; mhoughton@strathamnh.gov
<mhoughton@strathamnh.gov>

Good evening Mr. Hickey,

| am alarmed by the Trail Inventory and Assessment and the action items for 2021
that are referenced in the town newsletter. Admittedly, 2020 was primarily
occupied with me advocating for my children and their education and | was
unable to give town matters the focus they deserve. | am now alarmed by the
2021 action items on the plan and have several questions about the credentials
of SnowHawk LLC and the objective of this assessment.

Can you please answer the following questions for me?

* What other professional organizations were considered for the trail
assessment and what was the selection criteria?

* What credentials does SnowHawk / Lew Shelley have to evaluate the
conditions of the trails and the megafauna?

® Has a geologist or engineering firm been consulted for evaluation?

* What criteria were used to evaluate the impact of each type of traffic on
all items in the ecosystem?

I am specifically concerned about the seemingly targeted approach of this report
to dictate the need for dogs to be on leash with little scientific evidence of any
disruption that can be linked specifically to dogs. Noting the impact of dogs to
wildlife while then stating “Wildlife concerns may be better left to advice from
experts with more knowledge on the impact for these parcels” (p.54) eliminates
any element of validity to that statement.

In addition, it seems incomplete to include “concerns expressed about the
number of dogs” without including all the other concerns of residents of
Stratham. Can we get additional information about who expressed these
concerns?






Parks and Recreation Report to the Stratham Select Board, November 16" (Last report 8/17/20)

Seth Hickey, Parks and Recreation Director

Recreation Revolving Fund Policy and Procedure

Final draft included in your packet.

Recreation Bylaws

Final draft included in your packet.

Trail Assessment Plan

Most recent version included in your packet.
Next steps.

Program Updates

Youth Basketball, proposal for a season
Senior Citizens
Tai Chi, Painting Class
Zoom Calls
After ‘school’ activities
Street Hockey, Esports
Winter Activities
Ski programs/ events at the Park
Spring and summer plans
PCAC

Status of the committee

Upcoming Meetings

Recreation Commission, 11-18-20

Conservation Commission, 11-18-20



Stratham Parks and Recreation Department Summary

Report Date:January 15th, 2020

Vision Statement

Provide a quality of life for residents of all ages by developing
and maintaining parks, trails, and public facilities and providing
quality recreation and senior citizen programs that maintain a

balanced sense of community.

Functional Responsibilities of Parks and Recreation

Director

Responsible for supervising, directing, and managing all aspects

of the Stratham Parks and Recreation Department

[ Stratham Hill Park
[ Stevens Park

3 Municipal Park

3 Programs

o

Special Events/ Community Trips
Provide and monitor a budget that is fiscally responsible based
on the needs of the community and is forward thinking
Determine current and future needs of recreation facilities and
programming for the residents of Stratham

Key Performance Indicators (Green, White, Yellow, Red)

B88 and Yellow KPI's

Senior Check In’s- Weekly Zoom calls are taking
place on Thursday afternoons. Attendance is

PCAC- Planning to start meetings again in early

‘20YTD 19 YTD Delta
# Participants 840 8,000
# Events 4 12 -
# Trips 0 5 -
# Programs 20 32

Safety 2019 Totals

Participant Injuries

2, ski program

Patron Injuries (reported) 0
Staff Injuries 0
Weather Related 0

Transfer of funds from the Recreation Revovling Account to the

General Fund

Total transfered: $3,438

Participant transfer: $2,688 ($5 per)

Summer Camp: $0
Soccer, field lining: $750

These figures are not reflected in the Recreation Revolving Fund

balance above.

February. New member interested in joining the
Committee

Afterschool Programming-Esports start next week
Two ski programs are underway, both are going
well (Pat’'s Peak and Mclintyre).

Spring programming to include, Cross Country,

cycling, outdoor basketball

Recreation Commission-February9th, Reviewing
request to offer a late season basketball
progoram, March- April.

Reviewing requests to offer baseball and softball
programs this spring. Baseball would like to play in
a regional league.

Payroll
12/28/20 ‘20 YTD 19 YTD Delta
Director 72,548.99 | 71,346.20 1,202.79
strong.
Program 32,201.96 | 46,640.01 -14,438.05
Coordinator
General Fund
12/28/20 ‘20YTD 19 YTD Delta
Total Expenses 123,352.25 | 193,306.82 | -85,552.76
Recreation Revolving (added detail on second page)
‘20 YTD 19 YTD Delta
Total Revenue 127,252.08 208,905.01 | -81,652.93
Park Reservation Fund Not updated
19 YTD 18 YTD Delta
Total Revenue $32,819.25 31,355.54 $1,463.71

Conservation Commission- January 27th, | have
drafted a policy regarding monitoring easements.
The policy has been shared with staff. Policy
reviews processing and follow up on these
reports.

Seacoast Velo Kids- Letter submitted by
organization about capital projects at SHP:

Eagle Scout Project

Dante Mulcahy, development of Park space
behind Municipal Center. Gaga pit construction by
the playground.

Brandon Blood, Trail Kiosk Signs at the SHP
Trail Network.



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ga-ga

Recreation Revolving Detail

Payments from the Rec

Revolving Account, payments over $500

Date Total

Notables*

No expenses ove $500 for the month.

2021 Budget

BAC presentation went well. | don’t anticipate further follow up
required. | still need to coordinate with Public Works regarding staffing

and schedules for 2021.

Recreation Revolving Account- account balances have been updated.
Those accounts are currently being reviewed by Recreation to ensure

they are accurate.

Selectmen Assistance

e Dog issues at Stratham Hill Park
trail network. Attached is an
email received from a Stratham
resident regarding their
concerns about unleashed dogs
on the trails.

I have followed up with
Stratham Police Dept. regarding
these concerns. Additional
follow up may be required.

Stratham Seniors-

Tai Chi, Wednesdays
Painting Classes, Thursdays
Zoom Calls, Thursdays

Trail Assessment Report

To be posted on the Town website. Still
waiting on supporting photos (200) to be
received in order to consider the report
complete.

Next steps, creation of ad hoc committee. |
will present a list of candidates for the
committee as well as a charge for the
committee at the February 1st Select Board
meeting.

Basketball

Current Programs/ Events

e Adult Painting Class
e Adult Tia Chi Class
e Ski Programs (2)

Upcoming/ Long Range Projects
Project Time Notes
Advance Planning for | Q1, 2021 Ad Hoc Committee to be
policies (dogs, Park) formed
Trail Plan for SHP Completed | Approved
Eagle Scout Project | Q1, 2021
Procedure
Trail Map Creation, Q2, 2021
SHP

Events at SHP

e Ice Rink, colder weather
needed

e Snowshoe hike, snow needed

e Fat bike rentals, snow needed

The Recreation Commission has decided to
postone a youth basketball season at this time.
The department will consider offering a season
in March depending on the status of the
pandemic.

Spring/ Summer Programming
Planning is underway for baseball and
softball seasons. Baseball is requesting to
play other towns in their league. To be
reviewed by the RC in February.

The Department would like to be able to
offer a spring trail race series at Stratham
Hill Park during the month of May. In the
coming months the Department needs to
review with the Board the current
restrictions on group size limitations in
public venues.




TOWN OF STRATHAM
Incorporated 1716
10 Bunker Hill Avenue ° Stratham, NH 03885
Parks and Recreation, 603-775-7450 ext. 250

Fax, 603-775-0517

To: Stratham Select Board
From: Seth Hickey, Parks and Recreation Director
Date: January 29, 2021

Re: Draft Charge for Proposed Ad-Hoc Committee following SHP Trail Assessment & Report

The recent Trail Assessment and Inventory Report for Stratham Hill Park provides recommendations and
highlights key areas to address at the trail system at Stratham Hill Park system. Some areas and
recommendations identified have policy implications that require further discussion with the community and
process | am recommending the Board consider forming an ad-hoc Committee to work with Town of Stratham
Parks & Recreation staff to advise the Board going forward on how best to address the issues raised and
recommendations made in the Report. Prior to forming a Committee, | hope to work with you and the Town
Administrator in the development of a charge to define the role of the Committee, needed assistance and
timeline. To begin the discussion, | have attached a draft charge.

Ultimately, | envision this Committee would be responsible with making recommendations to the Select Board
on how to best proceed with implementing the recommendations and address issues outlined in the report. The
Committee would also serve as a sounding board and a forum for park users and residents. Harnessing
community energy, passion and input will be a valuable component of the Committee’s process and a great
opportunity to advance the charge. For example, | would suggest the Committee (and the Community) gain
grounding together in not only the Trail Assessment Inventory Report but the existing conditions and
policies/ordinances in place at the Park early in the process. In addition, | envision several listening sessions
would be part of the Committee’s work plan, including early in the process, to give an opportunity for residents
to provide input and ideas as well as express concerns and fears.

| have drafted a charge for the proposed ad hoc committee. That charge is an addendum to this memo. |
welcome your feedback and input regarding the charge. Please feel free to contact me directly with any
guestions or concerns you may have.



DRAFT
Charge for Town of Stratham Stratham Hill Park Trails Advisory Committee 2021
Overall Goal:

The purpose of this Advisory Committee is to review the recommendations and areas of concern raised in the
Trail Assessment & Inventory Report written by Snowhawk, LLC in 2020 for the trails within the Stratham Hill
Trail network. This Committee will make policy recommendations, develop strategies for necessary
improvements outlined in the report, and submit recommendations to the Select Board. The Committee will
also serve as a public forum for obtaining input about the Stratham Hill Park Trail System, including the Report
and other input relevant to the Committee’s charge.

Charge:

1. Make general recommendations for following-up on the Report, its recommendations and issues raised
with in it.

2. The report suggests a few trails be permanently be closed within the trail system. The Committee will
review these recommendations and report to the Select Board their findings.

3. Several sections of Trail are in need of improvement. The Committee will develop a plan on how to best
address these section and report their plan to the Conservation Commission and the Park Association.

4. The report makes recommendations on policies regarding the usage of the trails within the system.
Some recommendations address new topics (e-bikes), while others revisit emerging concerns (off leash
dogs and leaf blowing of trails). The Committee should make recommendations concerning any changes
to relevant policies or ordinances.

Structure & Timeline:

The SHP Trails Advisory Committee will be an ad hoc committee. It will consist of 7 members appointed by the
Select Board. The Board will appoint a chairperson, who will be responsible for conducting the meetings
ensuring compliance with the New Hampshire public meetings laws including meeting postings and record
keeping requirements as well as adhering to the Committee’s charge and timelines. One committee member
will serve as secretary. The Parks and Recreation Director will be the staff liaison to the committee.

The Committee shall provide an interim report to the Select Board three (3) months following date of
appointment; and recommend a timeline for the remaining work of the Committee to be completed.

Membership:

Membership on the committee will be open to Stratham residents. The Select Board will appoint one member
each from the Conservation Commission, Park Association, and the Stratham Pedestrian & Cyclist Advisory
Committee. Remaining seats to be filled by residents interested in participating in the process and committed to
attending the meetings. The staff liaison shall be a non-voting member. Applications will be accepted through
the Town Administrator’s office.

Monthly Meetings:

A regular monthly meeting will be held on the third Wednesday of each month at 6 p.m. at the Stratham
Municipal Center. Other meetings and workshops can be scheduled as necessary.



Town of Stratham, NH
Trail Inventory and Assessment
For

Stratham Hill Park, Gordon Barker Town Forest, and adjacent properties




Contents

Ta1ageTe [V AT ] o HUUT PP U RO PPTOTOPPRI 3
LI LYo SRS 4
Trail 1dentification Chart .........oo it st e e s e s b e e bt e e sbeeenaees 15
R LT B TETY ol T o] 4o o Y-SR 16
Recommendations and PIANNING .......cc.uviiiiiiee et e st e e s e te e e e e abe e e s e abe e e e enbaee e enareeas 49
Yoo ] TP OPPRT 49
INEW EFAIIS .ottt e st e e st e st e e a et e s be e e s ab e e s be e e abte e s be e e sabeesabeeeanteenreeennns 49
Trail maintenance recomMmMENAAtiONS. ......couiiiiiiiiiieeee et 50
Leaf BIOWING ON trailS . .uuiii it e e et e e e e et e e e e e bt e e e e eabteeessbteeesenseaeeeenseneenannes 50
TrAIl SEFUCTUIES .ttt b e s bt s h e sttt e bt e s bt e sbeesab e st e eabe e b e e beesbeesaeesneeensean 51
Improvements to signage and trail Markers.......c.ooo i 51
WINEEI USE OF trailS ..eeeeneiiiiiie ettt et e e e e s be e e sab e e sareesbeeesabeesans 52
Impacts on Wildlife NADITAT ......ccceviie e et e e e et e e e e are e e e eanes 52
USE OF E-DIKES ...ttt ettt ettt st et e b e b e b saee et rean 53
USEE CONTICES .eeeiiee ettt ettt et sttt et e s be e e ab e e sabeeeabeesabeeesabeesabeesaneeesabaeenanes 53
BT oY =3 T a Lo N = 11 SRR 54
EVENES QN BIrOUP SIZE .uvviiiiiiiiee ittt ettt et e e ettt e e e st e e e e sbte e e s sbeeeeesabeeeeessteeesssseaeeesseeeessses 54
ACCESSIDIE TrAIIS ..t b ettt et e b e sh e st ettt be e bt e e he e st e eaeean 55
Closure and decommissSioNiNg OF trailS........ccccuiiiiiiiiii e e et e e e areeas 55
Trails to consider for closure INCIUAE: .......couooiiiiiiee e 55
Costs of trail construction and/or deCoOMMISSIONING........ccveiieeiieiieiie et estee e ereesreesteesaneeaneens 56
Partners and VOIUNTEEIS. ... ..ottt sttt et et eshe e s at e st et e e bt e be e bt e sbeesaeesaeeennean 56
Town property and private [aNAOWNELS .........ooiccuiiii ittt et e et e e e e ette e e e etteeeeebbeeeeeseaeaeenses 57
Trail Improvements and Projects — Five-YEar PIan .........coooiiii ittt et 57
(600} 3Tl (D11 To ) o F SO PPOPRR PR PRTURPOPRRPNS 58




Recommendations and Planning

Access

There is a sufficient number of locations used for public access to the trail system. Access is marked E1-
E12 on the town’s Stratham Trail map. These twelve access points are found all around the trail
network. One, E10 is being closed due to concerns by abutting neighbors about parking but it will not
affect the parking needs for the users. This makes sense as parking has been limited to the nearby
street and trails are accessed via a right-of-way from that location. The primary access to the trail
system is found on Portsmouth Ave. at Stratham Hill Park with ample parking for several cars in two
separate locations. Another access point (E12) that includes good parking is found at the western edge
of the network on Portsmouth Ave where the Crockett Farm Trail is located. The Stratham Memorial
School is at the eastern edge and is another point that with good parking. A few access points are
located in residential neighborhoods with close proximity to homes though in most cases they are at the
end of a dead-end street or a cul-de-sac. Gates are used to prevent unwanted access by motorized
vehicles and there was no evidence of motorized traffic.

The following provides estimates on the number of parking spaces available at each site:

100 - Stratham Middle School (note about this being a school, lot closed during normal school hours)
10 - Crockett Way (Portsmouth Ave)
90 - Stratham Hill Park main lot
30 - Stratham Hill Park 4H Barn area
20 - Jack Rabbit
4 - Powerline on Gifford Farm Road
6 - Long Hill
2 - Crockett Way (neighborhood)

Kiosks are placed in strategic locations and are used for posting information as well as the current town
map. This map does not show every available trail that has been created since it was last printed. If
possible, | suggest considering kiosks at each entry point to post maps and rules for use of the trails.
Educating users is critical so good signage at access points will be helpful.

Several “bootleg trails” that have been cut from nearby homes for quick access to the main trails. Many
of these have been used for some time and ending their use may not always be necessary. That said,
they certainly should not be encouraged and ideally, they would be closed, especially if they create
problems of any kind (erosion, motorized access, etc.). This will require communication and agreements
with user groups and the adjacent property owners. Details on how this is managed will be site
dependent.

New trails

With the number of trails already available it makes sense to not construct any additional trails. The
area is well served with the trails in place and maintenance of existing trails is more important than
building new. That said, some sections of the existing trails may benefit from short reroutes to avoid
sensitive areas, maintain proper grades, or to better align the current route. None of these are lengthy.

49




If any decisions are made for closing a portion of trails, there may be a need for reconnecting sections to
remain in use.

Educating the trails users about not building new trails will be an important piece of preventing new
construction. This includes short feeder trails that connect to nearby residences. Posting information at
trail heads and kiosks as well as on the town website is recommended. If these “bootleg” trails are found
they can be disguised and closed using a method that employs the planting of rocks and tree snags along
with scattering debris. Official signs can also be posted stating that the trail is closed per order of the
Stratham Conservation Commission.

Trail maintenance recommendations

Monitoring trail use would be helpful. Use of trail cameras or counters can aid in assessing the amount
and type of traffic on the trails. Using an adopt-a-trail volunteer system helps to monitor impact and
determine where work is needed. For example, Southeast Land Trust uses volunteers to perform trail
maintenance tasks and sometimes larger projects on some of their properties.

Continue to maintain existing trails and reroute problem areas. As noted in the individual descriptions,
some trails do not always meet recognized standards and best management practices. Most only
require short sections of regrading or fill. Some of the bigger concerns will require more erosion control
and/or rerouting to lesser grades. These can be detailed in a trail log with precise locations and needs.
Creating a detailed inventory of these work items is recommended as the next step in improving the
quality of the trails.

Establish the use of a trail log that is updated annually around the same time of year or based on the
time when any trail work was performed. Use of photos will also help to track any changes and damage
to the trails in need of repair.

Leaf Blowing on trails

Removal of leaves on trails, usually with leaf blowers, is an ongoing concern with trail maintenance
especially when trails are used by so many different user-types. Typically, it is the mountain bike
community that prefers to remove leaves from trails but hikers and others also have similar opinions.
While there has been a fair amount of debate on the subject there are no clear answers as to what is
correct. Some will argue that leaves are slippery when wet and prevent good traction for wheeled
traffic. Some will say that it is hard to follow a trail when covered with leafy debris. Still others will point
out the benefits of erosion control by keeping leaves in place. All of these may be true.

The concern for long-term trail quality is how the removal of leaves affects erosion. Leaves do offer
some protection to the trail tread in the same way that shingles protect a roof. It’s referred to as
“splatter erosion” by some. On the opposing side of the debate is that leaves left over time are organic
matter that turns to mud. Each has merit for consideration. There is also the noise factor of leaf blowers
and the impact on abutting landowners and more importantly how it affects wildlife. This needs to be
included in the conversation since the conservation of wildlife habitat is also a factor.

A good solution that has worked well at other locations is to keep the leaves and only hand rake areas
that accumulate enough to create problems where they won’t disappear over time. It’s surprising to see
how many will dry up and disappear on their own. If they do deposit into a pile that stays it is best to
remove them before they turn to an organic mulch thereby creating mud and preventing the water from

50




exiting the trail. Too much organic build-up in drains or dips will defeat the purpose of how they help
with erosion control. This can be part of the maintenance that should be done in spring and fall at a
minimum.

Trail closure is an option if a trail is deemed unsafe due to the presence of leaves. Presently there does
not seem to be a need for any rerouting of trails due to leaf build-up but the leaf issue is one that can
continue to be tracked as part of semi-annual inspections.

Trail structures

As noted, there are several structures such as bridges and boardwalks. Only a few are in need of repair
or replacement. Most are smaller bridges for small stream crossings with a few longer boardwalks
crossing wet sections of trail. Whenever possible, considerations should be given to using sustainable
measures starting with proper drainage and using stone and gravel for trail hardening before building
wooden boardwalks or bridges that can be costly and require maintenance over time. Granted, wooden
structures are often the only solution. These should be built to accommodate all user types and be
constructed in such a way that they don’t affect adjacent streams or wetlands. All materials should be
pressure-treated lumber, white oak, black locust, or similar for rot resistance and longevity. In situations
where longer spans (typically referred to as over 16’) are required it may be necessary to have
engineered plans for safety and liability reasons. Often these longer structures may require professional
assistance or at least knowledgeable builders. The State of NH recognizes the International Building
Code for construction projects. Individual towns may have additional codes related to structures.
Wetland permits will also apply when the structure does not go from bank-to-bank and involves
excavation in the stream bank or construction in a stream bed.

Maintain structures and rebuild them as needed. Any existing structures should be monitored on an
annual basis for quality and safety reasons. Bridges and structures used to cross wet areas are probably
the most critical structures requiring constant maintenance. Bridge designs vary but when using decking,
it is best placed so that it is perpendicular to the trail tread. This is a more foot and wheel friendly design
that is safer for traveling on. Railings should be used when the bridge is more than 30” off the ground.

Erosion control structures should be limited to grade dips and tread shaping to allow water to flow off
the trail at appropriate locations. The rubber water bars in use on some trails seem to work in most
cases but they should be angled and extend well beyond the edge of the trail to be most effective. All
drainage structures should be cleaned of debris periodically and at least once in the spring and fall. All
structures need to be “wheel friendly” to allow for the safe passage of bikes and other permitted
wheeled vehicles. Often good design measures using the terrain and grade are the best solutions of all.

Some of the erosion issues could be managed and/or corrected by limiting some trails to one-way
traffic. The Lincoln Trail is an example of this. Mountain bikes especially can cause problems from
spinning wheels on steep uphill climbs or from locking brakes going downhill.

Improvements to signage and trail markers

With such a maze of trails that are in such a limited amount of space, it is wise to mark them well.
During the assessment and mapping it was sometimes confusing where some of the trails were. The trail
name signs at the entrances were helpful where there were any and the emergency points also helped
to confirm locations along the trails as they often marked key intersections. There were some
intersections that were not as clear, especially where there were shortcuts made or where an

51




intersection had been heavily impacted in open areas. Shortcuts and trails cut without permission only
add to the confusion if one isn’t familiar with the trails.

It would be helpful to all users if the trails were marked more frequently along the routes they follow.
This does not mean every tree needs marking and good judgement should be used for how they are
placed so as not to impact the experience visually. This could be done with painted blazes that are color
coded or with small signs that are colored and/or use actual trail names. Each have their advantages and
disadvantages. Blazing is cheap and nails are not placed in trees. This does require periodic
maintenance. Signs can be stolen or removed for whatever reason. Both require a tree that is large
enough for the blaze to be applied so they are most effective in forested areas. Posts with signs or
blazing can be used where trees are not available.

The emergency response using GPS coordinates and waypoints seems to be a solid system that can be
altered as needed. Work with the local EMS to continually train staff and test the system.

Signs associated with specific events should be removed quickly after the conclusion of the event.

Winter Use of trails

Winter use of trails has an impact when the snow compacts and becomes icy later in the winter. This
surface then melts last and is often in place when spring rains begin. The result is that the water runs
down the sides of the compacted snow and creates erosion problems that go beyond the summer
concerns. Although it’s not usually more of a problem with snowmobile trails, it’s worth watching for
this where trails are used for winter fat-biking, skiing, and snowshoeing.

Impacts on wildlife habitat

One of the main reasons for this assessment was to determine the impact on wildlife habitat in the
forest. According to the NH Fish and Game “Trails for People and Wildlife” tool used, there are areas of
the forest considered to be high impact, primarily in and around the wetlands and the adjacent forested
areas, as well as some of the field edges. Some of the older, original trails/roads are in areas considered
as high impact. This appears to be less of a concern with the newer trails.

The impact on wildlife should also be measured by the amount of traffic and the type of use an area
receives. The heaviest traffic tends to be closest to Stratham Hill Park and the trails in that area. This is
also where travel occurs on the older, original trails that tend to circumnavigate or skirt the edges of the
ponds and wetlands. These are the same trails that often see the most dog walking activity and dogs can
certainly create disturbance to wildlife, especially when they are not leashed.

Mountain biking, snowshoeing, skiing, etc. do not necessarily create any more impact on wildlife than
everyday foot traffic. Bushwhacking, off-trail travel and hunting can also disturb wildlife but typically
there are fewer people doing this. Hunting is permitted with written landowner permission on private
properties, but not on property owned by the Town of Stratham. Seasonal closures are an option if
there are specific concerns about wildlife during mating season or in the harsh winter months. Early
morning and evening are often active times for many species so the time of use can also factor into the
concerns. Fortunately, mechanized traffic for recreation is not allowed as that does have a larger impact.
Limitations on chainsaws, leaf blowers, and other power tools might also be a part of the solution to
preventing excessive noise.

52




Unless there are rare or threatened species, it is our opinion that it is unlikely that wildlife would be
drastically affected by the trails in their current state or as they are used at this time but it is an
important item to monitor and address as needed. It is important to remember the importance of the
wildlife corridors between nearby forest lands and how they relate to these properties.

Use of E-bikes

E-Bikes, bikes that use electric motors to assist the rider, are becoming increasingly popular but come
with a good deal of controversy with landowners and trail users. Opinions on the bikes themselves are
not nearly as important as the implications they may have to trails and the surrounding environment. A
common concern is that eBikes will hasten the degradation of trail networks with their power and their
ability to allow riders to cover more trails in less time than if done by pedal power. More importantly,
given the speed at which they can travel, safety should be an important consideration for the others
using the trails.

There are a few different classifications of e-Bikes:

* Class 1: eBikes that are pedal-assist only, with no throttle, and have a maximum assisted speed of 20
mph.

* Class 2: eBikes that also have a maximum speed of 20 mph, but are throttle-assisted.
* Class 3: eBikes that are pedal-assist only, with no throttle, and a maximum assisted speed of 28 mph.

A few trail networks that have begun to allow these bikes generally limit the use to Class 1 eBikes. The
New England Mountain Bike Association (NEMBA) is monitoring the use and reviewing their support of
eBikes. IMBA is considering their support and has been softening their views. The verdict is still out on
what the final decisions might be. The National Park Service and U.S. Forest Service are considering
allowing them. There may be a place for them on trails that are designed with these eBikes in mind or
on roads that will support them. Green Woodlands in Dorchester, NH is one area that has begun to
allow them on a trial basis. Given the fact that this is still a relatively new aspect of biking, it would be
best to refrain from allowing them on Stratham trails until more is learned about the impact on trails
and the safety of users (both the riders and other users on the trails). Continue to monitor the potential
use of these bikes and any specific needs for their use.

User Conflicts

User conflicts may exist whenever trails are used for a variety of activities. It is obvious that the trails
here may face this problem as many are currently shared by walkers, bikers, and dogs all at the same
time. A common rule of trail courtesy involves right-of-way. It seems that many hikers—even
experienced ones—may not know or always remember this, but hikers going uphill have the right of
way. This is because in general hikers heading up an incline have a smaller field of vision and may also
be in that “hiking rhythm” zone and not in the mood to break their pace. Often an uphill hiker may let
others come downhill while they take a breather, but remember that’s the uphill hiker’s call.

If you’re about to pass another hiker from behind, a simple “hello” is often the best way to announce
your presence. Remember, many of us can zone out on those long, steep inclines! When passing,
always stay on the trail to reduce erosion.

53




Since mountain bikes are considered more maneuverable than hikers’ legs, bikers are generally
expected to yield to hikers on the trail. However, because those mountain bikes are often moving
considerably faster than said legs, it’s usually easier for hikers to yield the right of way—especially if a
mountain biker is huffing and puffing up a tough incline. A biker should never expect a hiker to yield,
though.

Because mountain bikers move faster, hikers should also be aware of their surroundings on shared
trails. Conscientious mountain bikers will call out as they come down steep slopes or blind switchbacks,
and they should also let you know if there are other bikers following them.

Educating the public on trail etiquette is recommended. Posting information on appropriate websites
and at trail heads and in kiosks would help achieve this goal.

Dogs and trails

The trails are very popular for dog walking and rightfully so. However, there have been concerns
expressed about the number of dogs and more importantly the safety of others when dogs are on the
trails. Several other parks and trails have guidelines and restrictions for when, where and how dogs may
be included with the other users on trails. These concerns are related to all pets (or farm animals) and
not just dogs.

For safety reasons and for the protection of wildlife (megafauna to the tiniest amphibians) it is
suggested that all dogs be leashed when on the trails. This allows everyone to use the trails at the same
time without accidents with bikers and close encounters with people. This is especially true when
several dogs are walking in a group or when they meet on the trail and must pass at a close distance to
other dogs or people on the trail. Even with leashes, dogs should be kept in control and brought to the
side of the trail when there are others passing by.

One other solution is to designate certain trails for dog walking while restricting others. Some of the
wider trails or those with good visibility over a distance are more conducive to the spatial needs of
sharing the trail corridor. Trails such as Tote Road and the trails around the meadows are good
examples.

Here are a few ideas to consider as part of animals sharing the trails:
All animals must be on a standard or retractable leash not greater than six feet in length.

Animal owners must clean up any waste eliminated by their animals and dispose of it in provided
containers or remove it off-site.

Animals must not be left unattended at any time, including in vehicles.

Any Stratham Town Ordinances will also apply here.

Events and group size

The impact of large groups using the trails in a short period of time such as a race or similar event can
have negative effects on trails. This is especially true if conditions are wet or muddy. Entire trail systems
have been damaged and required substantial maintenance in situations like this. Good judgment should
be used if conditions were less-than-ideal during a scheduled event. Realizing this is always tough to
manage with prior planning, it would be wise to limit activities to some of the larger trails with adequate

54




drainage and rerouting or closing sections that might be impacted. The Parks and Recreation
Department currently has systems in place to properly manage the events they sponsor using
cancellations or postponing events when necessary. This is currently managed by the Parks and
Recreation Director. The Town also provides a summary of planned events to the Edith C. Barker
Revocable Trust (Barker Family) at the beginning of every year.

Accessible trails

Accessible trails are designed for use by those with physical or mobility limitations. They are typically
hard-surfaced trails that are on low angle grades. There are strict standards set by the American
Disability Act (ADA) and the Architectural Barriers Act (ABA) for how these are constructed. Though the
park and some of the town forest areas may be the most appropriate and cost-effective locations for
trails such as this, there are none that meets these standards beyond the paved areas. Consideration
should be given to adding more of these opportunities over time. Portions of the Tote Road or trails
along the field edges would be good choices for this. These trails would allow for the enjoyment of
diverse environments by those with physical limitations and they meet the grade requirements and are
already for surfacing.

There is a demand for more of these trails as they serve so many users. They are often multi-use trails
but can also be restricted to certain users (example: wheelchairs but not bikes). Nearby examples of
similar trails can be found at Mt. Agamenticus in York, ME and some excellent examples at Crotched Mt.
Rehabilitation Center in Greenfield, NH.

Closure and decommissioning of trails

The decision to close and decommission trails is one that will fall to the Parks and Recreation Dept.
and/or the Stratham Conservation Commission while considering input from this report and the
community. Future needs and plans for logging or other work in the farm or forest areas may dictate
temporary or permanent trail closures. As discussed, wildlife concerns may be better left to advice from
experts with more knowledge on the impact for these parcels. There are trails, or sections of trails, that
were never placed in appropriate locations to be sustainable and low maintenance. Others may be
shortcuts or duplicates of nearby trails and are either unnecessary or creating more damage to the
landscape. These could be removed without significant changes to the current recreational uses of the
property. It’s wise to inform and educate the public on any changes and closures with the trail system.
Include any and all online resources that are known to be used for trail information as this is where
many people are finding recreational areas now.

Trails to consider for closure include:

e Ruptured Lung (#19, pg. 32) — Steep grades and erosion concerns. Monitor for continued erosion
and close if it cannot be managed.

e Father and Son Extension (#27, pg. 40) — Proximity to wetlands and poor condition.

e Old Ski Slope (#29, pg. 42) — Steep and safety concerns.

e Side trails between ponds from the Tote Road to Fire Tower Road (#30, pg. 43) — proximity to
wetlands and wildlife sensitive areas.

e Easternmost cross trail from variation by Stratham Hill Pond (Barker Trail to field) (#30, pg. 43) —
unnecessary with other nearby connectors and in a wet area.

55




e Southernmost cross trail between Barker and the adjacent field (#31, pg. 44) — poor conditions
and a duplicate of other nearby trails.

e Easternmost connector trail between Long Hill and Fire Pit Connector (#32, pg. 45) — steep and
erosion concerns.

e Lower Barker to Fire Pit Connector (#33, pg. 46) — duplicate of other nearby trails and in poor
condition.

These choices for closures will still allow access for hikers and bikers to other existing trails. The
remaining trails are well positioned for connecting with other nearby trails. The benefit of providing
more open space for wildlife habitat is also increased to meet the goals of conservation.

Costs of trail construction and/or decommissioning

Ask any professional trail contractor about the cost of trail work and you’ll get a wide range of numbers.
There are so many site-specific variables that include such things as length/width, soils, access,
vegetation removal, season, machine vs. hand-built, contractor overhead, volunteers or not...the list
goes on.

When the time comes to build or maintain trails and trail structures, or decommission others, it will be
necessary to decide on whether the work can be done by town employees, volunteers, or if it will
require a professional trail contractor. Using contractor bids will provide a better sense of the actual
costs. Contracts and agreements can be based on the information gained through the bids and
interviews. This requires a complete and thorough trail log/survey to present for the bidding. This
assessment was not intended to serve that purpose but hopefully using this information as a foundation
for that work will help with that process. On-site inspections with a focus on designs and related costs
are best for getting fair and equal estimates. There are several reputable contractors based in the
Northeast with a wide variety of experience, skills, and areas of expertise. A list of these can be made
available if requested.

It is important to note that Stratham has the good fortune of having town employees with a good
knowledge of trail construction and most likely a group of volunteers that are dedicated to doing good
trail work as has already been demonstrated. They should continue to be part of any plans for future
maintenance or trail closures.

Careful consideration should be given to the long-range view and future maintenance of any trails.
Without maintenance, trails can quickly fall into disrepair and understanding the amount of work that
goes into good maintenance is easily forgotten. Current volunteer work groups may not always be
interested or available and though they provide excellent service, trail contractors can be expensive. As
a cost savings measure it would also be possible to hire a contractor that is willing to lead groups of
volunteers for routine maintenance.

Partners and volunteers

Continuing to maintain and develop partnerships with users and volunteers will be a key to the long-
term success of managing the trail network. It will take many hands to do the work needed. Partners
(such as the mountain bike community, Scout groups and school teams, etc.) will be key to
accomplishing the goals. Building a base of volunteers who are ready to help will be important. Training
volunteers about best management practices for conservation as well as trail construction and

56




maintenance are an important piece of this process. Some professional trail contractors are willing to
train and/or work with volunteers on trail projects.

Communicating updates and changes with user groups on a regular basis is also important as is
providing time for regular meetings with Parks and Recreation staff, at least on a seasonal basis.

Town property and private landowners

The Stratham Conservation Commission manages the Gordon Barker Town Forest and the Stratham
Select Board manages the area of Stratham Hill Park. But last and certainly not least, private landowners
may have opinions or preferences on how the trails are or are not used. Planning and decisions should
be made with respect for their wishes and the generosity of allowing use of their land.

Trail Improvements and Projects — Five-Year Plan
2021

e Trail assessment with recommendations, photo documentation, annual use log.

e Formation of Trails Committee, ad hoc advisory

e Discuss potential options and solutions with town officials and include general public feedback
session(s).

e Make decisions on any immediate concerns, limited uses, dogs, leaf blowing, closures, etc.

2022

57




2024

Trail assessment with recommendations, photo documentation, annual use log.

Update Stratham Trail Map with changes based on additional and closed trails.

Create a detailed trail survey log for areas needing maintenance, reconstruction, rerouting,
and/or decommissioning with a timeline for completion.

Address any immediate trail safety concerns or prioritized maintenance needs based on the trail
survey.

Improve trail marker / signage system where needed.

Host a trail maintenance workshop to teach volunteers and build the volunteer base.

Improve trails using reconstruction and/or rerouting as prioritized. Utilize volunteers to tackle
smaller projects.

Trail assessment with recommendations, photo documentation, annual use log.

Improve trails using reconstruction and/or rerouting as prioritized taking next steps on larger
projects and to improve overall network. Use volunteers whenever possible and contractors if
necessary.

Close and decommission any trails as needed.

Trail assessment with recommendations, photo documentation, annual use log.

Improve trails using reconstruction and/or rerouting as prioritized taking next steps on
additional projects and to improve overall network. Use volunteers whenever possible and
contractors if necessary.

Close and decommission any trails as needed.

Trail assessment with recommendations, photo documentation, annual use log.
Complete any remaining areas of significance needing work.

Close and decommission any trails as needed.

Update trail map and general information based on changes to date.

Review progress to date, discuss future needs.

Conclusion

The combined properties of Stratham Hill Park, Gordon Barker Town Forest, the Barker and Short
easements have much to consider for the future when it comes to managing the increased demands of
recreation while considering the potential impacts on habitat for flora and fauna, farming, future
logging, and more. It has a wide variety of features including farmland, mixed forest types, as well as
streams and wetlands that provide habitat for wildlife. The 200 or so acres are an island surrounded by
residential and commercial areas as well as farming and are connected to other green spaces by thin
threads of forest. These properties are an excellent example of farm and forest land that interfaces well
with the pressures of the surrounding landscape with residential and commercial activity as well as the

58




needs of the town. The mix of trails offer users many types of outdoor recreation opportunities in every
season. With good planning and a long-term view of management and maintenance the area will
provide opportunities for many over the years ahead while meeting the goals of the town and the
mission of conservation.

It has been a pleasure to get to know these trails while realizing that there is so much more to
experience and see. It is my hope that this report will help to meet the needs of all who use it and
appreciate it. | am available to continue the conversation, answer questions, and offer opinions on
maintaining the trails in the forest if there is ever a need.

Lew Shelley

SnowHawk LLC

59




Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances
PFAS) in the Stratham Town Center

Update

Prepared for: The Town of Stratham, New Hampshire

Wilcox & Barton, Inc.
February 1, 2021




Objectives
» Brief recap

> NHDES Request for a Remedial Action Plan (RAP) and
Groundwater Management Permit (GMP) Application

> September/October sampling event results
> Content of RAP, expectations for GMP

> What's next?

> Q&A




Brief Recap and Recent Update

> September 2019: Town Hall meeting and update
> Debate over MCLs/AGQS in late 2019
» February 24, 2020: Focused S| completed

» July 21, 2020: NHDES issues request for RAP and GMP
Application

> Fall 2020 Groundwater and Drinking Water Sampling
» January 2021: Draft RAP and GMP Application prepared




PFHxXS:
PFOA:
PFOS:
PFNA:

18 ppt
12 ppt
15 ppt
11 ppt




e
«




Results and Current Status

Monitoring Wells:

» 4 of 5 wells tested at the fire station contain PFAS at concentrations
>AGQS.

> The 5t well is located upgradient of the property and has been non-
detect when sampled.

> 3 monitoring wells across the street, and downgradient of the fire station,
have PFAS at concentrations >AGQS.

Drinking Water Wells:

» 19 water supply wells and 3 irrigation wells contain PFAS at
concentrations >MClLs.

> The 22 wells are located on 19 properties.

> g&gflditional water supply wells contain PFAS, but at concentrations
S.




RAP/GMP Summary
TC RAP:

> The Remedial Design includes 5 design options:

— POET: Dual Carbon Tank System (est. $4,500-$5,500 per home)
> Replacement GAC filter tank, sediment filters, UV bulb

- POET: Dual Tank Carbon Bloc System (est. $4,800-$5,500 per home)
> Replacement cartridge, sediment filter

- POET: Single Tank Pioneer System (est. $2,400-$3,500 per home)
> Replacement cartridge, sediment filter

- POUT: Pentair 4 State Reverse Osmosis (est. $900-$1,200 per home)

> Replacement RO cartridges, RO membrane. Only for locations with PFAS
at concentrations <MCLs

GMP:

» Includes X water supply wells on Y frequency
» Includes X monitoring wells on Y frequency

> Permit is for a 5-year, renewable term




What's Next?

> RAP and GMP Application to NHDES.

> NHDES to review findings and provide recommendations.
> Town to continue providing bottled water.

> POE system vendor(s); subsequent installation.

> Regular sampling (biannual? triannual? quarterly?) following an
approved GMP from NHDES.

> POE samples collected before and after filters to ensure
effectiveness.

> Continue “Best Management Practices” w/r/t PFAS foams.
— Stratham switched to a PFAS-free product in approximately 2000




Questions?

Thank you!
g 27

Russell Barton ? -

Wilcox & Barton, Inc. ®

rbarton(@wilcoxandbarton.com

(603) 369-4190, X502 ? Ly~
¢



mailto:rbarton@wilcoxandbarton.com












































































































































































SELECT BOARD MEETING

02/01/2021
Date: 02/01/2021
To: Board of Selectmen
David Moore, TA
From: Christina Murdough, Assessor

Re: Signatures required

LAND USE CHANGE TAX & LUCT TAX WARRANT

Holt, Anthony & Marie
Map 15 Lot 41
119 Union Road

Jewell, Brandon & Rochelle
Map 15 Lot 42
121R Union Road

Holt Jr., William & Teresa
Map 15 Lot 43
123 Union Road

Lambrou, Eric & Laura
Map 14 Lot 54
90 Winnicutt Road

Copley Properties, LLC
Map 14 Lots 165, 169, 170, 171, 173, and 174
7,15,17, 19, 20, and 18 Treat Farm Road

$500.00

$800.00

$200.00

$2,000.00

$22,500.00



2021 Webinar Series

2021 Legislative Preview:
Get Ready to Advocate

January 27, 2021

Presented by:
Margaret Byrnes, Executive Director
Cordell Johnston, Government Affairs Counsel

Becky Benvenuti, Government Finance Advisor

vV v vV

Natch Greyes, Municipal Services Counsel

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orq / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

Today’s Speakers

H. PSHIRE MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION
! EST. 1941 :

Margaret Byrnes Cordell Johnston
Executive Director Government Affairs Director

Becky |. Benvenuti Natch Greyes
Government Finance Advisor Municipal Services Counsel

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orq / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

How to Sign up/Testify

New Hampshire House of Representatives Public Guidance for Remote Committee
Meetings

» To sign in to speak on a bill or to register support or opposition, you will utilize the
newly created sign-in form located on the general court website available here:
http://gencourt.state.nh.us/house/committees/remotetestimony/default.aspx

» You are encouraged to sign in well in advance of the hearing. If you not wish to speak
on a bill or register support or opposition, but wish to view the meeting, you are
encouraged to watch via the House of Representatives YouTube channel available
here: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCxqjz56akoWRL 5vyaQDtvQ This new
ﬂnlin_e form will allow you to sign in on a bill as soon as it has been scheduled for a

earing.

» HOUSE REMOTE TESTIMONY DIRECTIONS

New Hampshire State Senate Public Guidance for Remote Committee Meetings

» To sign in to speak on a bill or to simply register support or opposition, you will utilize
the newly created calendar sign-in form located on the general court website
available here: http://gencourt.state.nh.us/remotecommittee/senate.aspx You are
encouraged to sign in well in advance of the hearing. This new online form will allow
you to sign in on a bill as soon as it has been scheduled for a hearing.

HOW TO SIGN IN AND TESTIFY BEFORE THE NH STATE SENATE



http://gencourt.state.nh.us/house/committees/remotetestimony/default.aspx
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCxqjz56akoWRL_5vyaQDtvQ
http://gencourt.state.nh.us/misc/House%20Remote%20Testimony%20Directions.pdf
http://gencourt.state.nh.us/remotecommittee/senate.aspx
http://gencourt.state.nh.us/misc/How%20to%20sign%20in%20and%20testify%20on%20Zoom%20before%20the%20New%20Hampshire%20State%20Senate.pdf

Special 2021 Legislation

»SB 2 -
Postponement of
town meeting/pre-
processing of
absentee ballots

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orq / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org

Zoning/Planning

HB 132 - prohibits municipali
from requiring more than Y-
acre lot size if lot does not use
well/septic tank

HB 189 - requires allowance of
up to three ADUs on single-
family dwelling

HB 284 - extends deadline for
restoration of involuntarily
merged lots



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

Zoning/Planning, continued

« HB 341 - requires allowance of up to four-
family dwellings

« HB 588 - requires allowance of “tiny houses™

« HB 586 - training for land use board members;
changes to review/approval process

» HB 288 - repeals housing appeals board




Right-to-
Know Law

« HB 108 - requires public body't
keep list of sealed minutes

« HB 206 - eliminates exemption fc
collective bargaining negotiation

« HB 232 - limits nonpublic sessions
for discussion of property
transactions

- HB 216, HB 630 - authorize virtua
public meetings

« HB 481 -RTK ombudsman

« SB 39 - exempts police personng
records

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

Budgeting/Finance

« HB 459 - prohibits transfer of funds to
“general ledger line item” with zero-
dollar amount

o HB 243 - requires full line-item detail in
electronic spreadsheet format

« HB 415 - similar to HB 243

« HB 545 - allows out-of-state banks to
accept deposits and investments of
public funds

« HB 585 - requires the issuance of dog
licenses for one or three years and
reduces the civil forfeiture fee and fine
amounts. Requires clerks to keep
rabies vaccine expiration records.

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orq / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

NH Retirement
System

« HB 390 - extends amortization
period for unfunded liability by
S years

« SB 72 - requires 15 percent state
contribution to employer share
for teachers, police, and fire
employees

» HB 274 - requires 5 percent
state contribution for same

» HB 619 - reclassifies police/fire
dispatchers as Group Il members

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orqg / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

State Aid
Grants

» HB 398 - makes a
$12.7 million
appropriation over 2
years to fund state aid
grants for eligible
wastewater projects

- HB 467 - makes a $1
million appropriation
over 2 years to fund
state for public water
system projects

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org / 603.224.7447



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

Municipal Authority

» HB 266 - “sanctuary cities”

» HB 307 - prohibits regulation of firearm use on municipally
owned property

» HB 439 - eliminates city council authority to adopt ordinance
“for the well-being of the city”

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org / 6(

Town
Meeting

HB 67 - requires voting on
both original and amended
version of petitioned article
In SB 2 towns

HB 374 - requires question of
adopting SB 2 to be voted on
by official ballot


mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

Elections

» SB 46 - electronic poll
books

« SB 47 - no-excuse
absentee voting/pre-
processing absentee
ballots

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orq / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

Net
Metering

» HB 106 - exempts “municipal
hosts” from one-megawatt
cap

» HB 148 - increases limit to
five megawatts for municipal
hydroelectric facilities

« HB 167 - increases limit to
five megawatts for all
customer-generators

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orq / 603.224.7447 /



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

“Omnibus” Senate bills

SB 83 — Optional town meeting procedure; pre-processing
SB 85 & SB 88 -- broadband

SB 86 — Third-party inspections; housing & conservation
planning program

SB 87 — Expenditure of water funds; fees for bad remittances;
CRFs for lease/purchase; bonds over $1 million

SB 89 — Partial pre-processing

SB 91 — Net metering

SB 95 — Remote meetings

SB 99 — M&R tax distributions

SB 100 — Commission to study PILOTs

SB 102 — Postponement of reappraisals

15



Property
Taxes/Assessing

» CACR 9 - Prohibits raising property
taxes more than two percent per
year, or one percent disabled or
senior citizens

» HB 383 - Permits towns with semi-
annual or quarterly tax billing and a
15 percent or more anticipated rate
increase to apply to DRA to adjust
estimated tax bills to reflect the
change

» HB 467 - prohibits non-native, non-
domesticated animals on land
eligible for current use

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orq / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

Property Taxes/
Assessing, cont’d

« HB 552 - suspends appraisal, assessme
and updating valuations under RSA 75 fa
tax year beginning April 1, 2021

« HB 53 - enables a municipality to
establish a community preservation and
resilience program, funded through a
property surcharge not to exceed 2%

» HB 126 - extends period to notify
gmrtgagee of tax lien execution to 60
ays

« HB 110 - requires adequate education
grants be distributed to municipalities
and requires municipalities to transfer
the grants to their school districts

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orqg / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

Miscellaneous

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org

HB 379 - electronic notice
In lieu of newspaper
publication

HB 397 - exempts
municipalities and others

¥rom shoreland permitting
ees

HB 73 - requires electronic
notice on DES’ website and
communication to _
_mumugalltles of permits
iIssued by DES



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

Subscribe to the Bulletin

SUBSCRIBE TO LEGISLATIVE BULLETIN HERE!



https://mailchi.mp/nhmunicipal/legislative_bulletin
https://mailchi.mp/nhmunicipal/legislative_bulletin

GET TEAMS INVITE HERE!

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orq / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



https://www.nhmunicipal.org/event/nhma-weekly-membership-call-7
mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

! EST. 1941 :

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orq / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

REGISTER HERE!

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orqg / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



https://www.cognitoforms.com/NewHampshireMunicipalAssociation/_2021TownSchoolModeratorsWorkshops
mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

! EST. 1941 :

SAVE THESE DATES!

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orq / 603.224.7447 / www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

for joining
us today

NHMA’S MISSION

Through the collective power of cities and towns,
NHMA promotes effective municipal government by

providing education, training, advocacy and legal
services.

nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.orq / 603.224.7447 - www.nhmunicipal.org



mailto:nhmainfo@nhmunicipal.org
http://www.nhmunicipal.org/

Federal Emergency Management Agency

Washington, D.C. 20472
January 22, 2021

Mr. Michael Houghton Case No: 12-01-1574V
Chairperson, Board of Selectmen Comumunity: Town of Stratham,
Town of Stratham Rockingham County,
10 Bunker Hill Avenue New Hampshire

Stratham, New Hampshire 03885 Community No.: 330197

Effective Date:  January 30, 2021
LOMC-VALID

Dear Mr. Houghton:

On January 29, 2021, the Department of Homeland Security’s Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) issued new or revised Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panels within your community. This letter
identifies the Letter of Map Change (LOMC) actions [i.e., Letters of Map Amendment (LOMAs) and Letters
of Map Revision-based on Fill (LOMR-Fs)] for properties and/or structures located in your community that
are stitl valid as of the effective date shown above. Any revalidation letters previously issued for your
community have been superseded as of the effective date listed above.

All effective LOMCs within your community have been reviewed, including LOMCs located in areas not
revised during this FIRM update. LOMAs and LOMR-Fs for which the original determination has not been
superseded by new or revised information will remain in effect until superseded by a subsequent LOMC or by
a revision to the FIRM panel on which the property and/or structure is located.

The enclosed table lists the FEMA case number, issue date, project identifier, and FIRM panel number for the
LOMCs revalidated by this letter. Please refer to the original determination document to obtain the details of

the outcome for the properties and/or structures included in the determination (such as flood zone, base flood
elevations, property elevations, etc.).

Letters of Map Revision (LOMRSs) previously issued for FIRM panels that were revised by the recent map
update for your community have either been incorporated into the revised FIRM or have been superseded by
the revised FIRM. LOMRs issued for FIRM panels that were not revised by the recent map update for your
community are not included on the enclosed table and will remain in effect until superseded by a revision to
that FIRM panel.

If there is a LOMC not on the enclosed list that you feel should have been revalidated, we encourage you to
submit the LOMC for re-determination. When requesting a re-determination, we ask that a cover letter be sent
along with a copy of the original determination letter to: LOMC Clearinghouse, 3601 Eisenhower Avenue,
Suite 500, Alexandria, VA 22304-6426. Re-deterininations may also be requested online at
https://www.fema.gov/online-lomec.

Because these revalidated LOMCs will not be reprinted or distributed to primary map users, such as local
insurance agents and mortgage lenders, your community will serve as a repository for this information. We
encourage you to disseminate the information reflected by this LOMC-VALID letter throughout your
community so that interested persons, such as property owners, local insurance agents, and mortgage lenders,
may benefit from the information.

Page 1 of 3



Copies of previously issued LOMCs, if needed, may be obtained from your community’s map repository,
FEMA’s Map Service Center website located at hitps://msc.fema.gov, or by contacting the FEMA Mapping
and Insurance eXchange (FMIX), toll free, at 1-877-FEMA-MAP (1-877-336-2627).

For additional information or questions relating to LOMCs not listed on the enclosed table, or mapping in
general, please contact the FMIX at the number provided above.

CcC!

Community Map Repository

Shanti Wolph, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer, Town of Stratham
Mark Connors, Town Planner, Town of Stratham

David Moore, Town Administrator, Town of Stratham

Sincerely,

ey

Luis V. Rodriguez, P.E,, Director
Engineering and Modeling Division
Federal Insurance and Mitigation Administration

L.OMC Subscription Service Subscribers

Page 2 of 3



REVALIDATED LETTERS OF MAP CHANGE FOR THE TOWN OF STRATHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Case No: 12-01-1574V Community No.: 330197
January 30, 2021
Case No. Date Issued Identifier FIRM Panel Number
05-01-0933A 10/27/2005 8R BOAT CLUB DRIVE 33015C0245F
06-01-B729A 8/23/2006 EVANS WAY CONDOMINIUM (NH) 33015C0265F
10-01-1265A 52172010 85 COLLEGE ROAD 33015C0245F
13-01-1362A 3/14/2013 LOT 6 -- 81 COLLEGE ROAD 33015C0245F
14-01-2891A 7/17/2014 LOT 9, WINGATE LANDING 33015C0245F
SUBDIVISION - 8 WINGATE COURT
15-01-1904A 7/153/2015 188 BUNKER HILL AVENUE 33015C0410F
15-01-2124A 8/26/2015 ROLLINS FARM DRIVE 33015C0410F
17-01-1084A 3/31/2017 CHISHOLM FARM, L.OT 11 — 33015C024517
3 OEMLOCK WAY
17-01-1493A 6/30/2017 TIHE PENINSULA AT WINDING BROOK 33015C0245F
CONDOMINTUM —
58 & 59 PENINSULA DRIVE
17-01-1703A 6/30/2017 SUBDIVISION PLAN LOT 2-25-26, LOT 33015C0410F
2 -25-26 -- 21 ROLLINS FARM DRIVE
18-01-1693A 7/26/2018 74 COLLEGE ROAD 33015C0245T

Page 3 of 3




Paragraph IV, page 2, HB 495-F, Long Term Seacoast Commission on Drinking Water.
The commission shall:

(@)  Continue the work of the RSA 485-F:5 seacoast commission on long-term
goals and requirements for drinking water which was repealed on November
1, 2018.

(b) Utilize and expand upon existing studies to plan for seasonal or drought
supply issues.

(c) Prepare and discuss mutual aid between seacoast towns for firefighting.

(d) Prepare and discuss mutual aid agreements for emergency or replacement
drinking water supply where contaminated.

(e) Encourage coordination between towns and cities.
(f) Establish working subgroups as needed.

(@)  Monitor and review the work of state agencies regarding possible new
emerging contaminant threats.

Paragraph VII, page 12, Final Report on 485-F, Seacoast Commission on Long Term
Goals and Requirements for Drinking Water

"There is an ongoing need to fund, develop and implement regional water supply
planning in the Seacoast Region. Regional planning could potentially be coordinated by
Regional Planning Commissions working with partners like the Southeast Watershed
Alliance. House bill 197 of 1995 authorized the establishment of a Seacoast Water
District under chapter law 42-1 in order to address intersectional distribution, source
location and any other issues related to water resources. A water district has not been
formed to date but could be formed to facilitate regional planning in the Seacoast
Region."



HB 495 Seacoast Drinking Water Commission
Work Session Minutes
January 14, 2021

Commission Members present: Representative Jaci Grote (Chair), Representative Mike
Edgar (Vice Chair), Senator Tom Sherman, Senator Rebecca Perkins Kwoka,
Representative Dave Meuse, Representative Aidan Ankarberg, Brandon Kernen, Tim
Roache, Jen Czysz, Brian Goetz, John Storer, Arthur Ditto, David Moore, David Ciccalone,
Garret Ahlstrom, Danna Truslow, Peggy Lamson, Lindsey Carmichael, Ann Lightbody,
Carl McMorran, Greg Lane, and Pat Bushway (Clerk). Jon Ali of NHDES participated as a
guest.

The Chair opened the work session at 2:02, the Clerk read the instructions pertaining to the
conduct of a remote meeting and called the roll. Each commission member gave a brief
introduction including their current position and relevant background.

Brandon Kernen of NHDES presented an update on the drought explaining that conditions
have improved, and the area can now be characterized as abnormally dry. However, there is
still a deficit and the lack of snow has the potential to result in a return to drought conditions
later in the year as melting of the snowpack in the spring supports spring and summer
planting and growing seasons.

Mr. Kernen provided an update on the Emergency Drought Assistance program to assist low-
income households that have experienced problems with residential wells because of the
drought. Approximately 57 applications for assistance have been submitted and 51 of those
have been approved. In some cases, the assistance includes providing new wells. Additional
information about the program is available on the Drought page of the DES website.

Mr. Kernen also provided information about two meetings hosted by DES. The first will
provide information for water systems operators, and the second will discuss manganese in
water and the need for a standard. He provided details on accessing the meetings on Jan
15th.

Chair Grote brought up the issue of the need for an inventory of water resources by
community to serve as part of the baseline for the commission’s work going forward. The
inventory would include a presentation of water resources by each town represented on the
commission. The suggestion was made that DES begin the process by providing an overview
of the region that would include but not be limited to water sources, protection areas, and
distribution infrastructure. Mr. Roache of the Rockingham Planning Commission and Ms.



Czysz of the Strafford Regional Planning Commission also have summary information for
their counties that can assist with the inventory and avoid redundant effort on the part of
the town/city commission members. Mr. Kernen presented a pie chart as an example of the
information by county that is available. The consensus was that these high-level
presentations should precede those of the towns/cities.

Chair Grote asked about reports of the costs of water going up, and if costs should be a topic
for the commission. Mr. McMorran of Aquarion stated that their costs are determined by
the Public Utilities Commission. Mr. Storer of Dover said that their water and sewer rates
are established annually with the budget. Mr. Goetz of Portsmouth said that the rates for all
communities supported by Portsmouth are set by the city council annually. Mr. Ditto of Rye
made the point that water rates must include costs for infrastructure maintenance.

The discussion returned to the topic of regionalization that was introduced at prior meetings.
Mr. Kernen said that regionalization efforts could prove to be more beneficial in the years to
come depending on the extent to which communities are interested in pursuing it. Mr.
Storer of Dover shared his experience with the development of the Southern Maine Regional
Water Council and stated that their efforts helped to optimize the use of the available
resources, and that the NH seacoast region could consider a similar effort.

Chair Grote asked that State Representatives Meuse of Portsmouth and Ankarberg of
Rochester provide a review of relevant legislation being considered in the current session.

That will be presented at the February meeting.

The session adjourned at 3:10.



	SB Packet 2-1-2021
	memo 2 1 2021
	SB Agenda 2 1 2021

	1 25 2021 special meeting
	SB Packet 2-1-2021
	Treasurers Report February 2021 SB Mtg
	Re_ 18-042-000
	Correspondence - E-mail dated January 9, 2021 re unleased dogs on trails at SHP
	Correspondence - E-mail from Elizabeth Graciano-Smith dated January 27, 2021 re Trail Inventory and Assessment at SHP
	2-1-21 report to the Select Board
	January 2021 P&R Report
	Charge Draft with memo - changes accepted

	SHP - Trails Report - Excerpt of TOC and Recommendations
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 1
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 2
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 49
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 50
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 51
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 52
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 53
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 54
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 55
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 56
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 57
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 58
	trail_inventory_and_assessment_2020 59

	SB Packet 2-1-2021
	PFAS Presentation_020121
	Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) in the Stratham Town Center�Update
	Objectives
	Brief Recap and Recent Update
	Slide Number 4


	SB Packet 2-1-2021
	PFAS Presentation_020121
	Slide Number 5
	Results and Current Status
	RAP/GMP Summary
	What’s Next?
	Questions?

	Financial Statements 2019

	SB Packet 2-1-2021
	SB Packet 2-1-2021
	LUCT Warrant Summary for 2-1-2021 Signature
	Informational - 2021 Legislative Preview FINAL (01.27.21)
	2021       Webinar Series
	Today’s Speakers
	How to Sign up/Testify
	Special 2021 Legislation
	Zoning/Planning
	Zoning/Planning, continued
	Right-to-Know Law
	Budgeting/Finance�
	NH Retirement System
	State Aid Grants�
	Municipal Authority
	Town Meeting
	 Elections
	Net Metering
	“Omnibus” Senate bills
	Property Taxes/Assessing
	Property Taxes/ Assessing, cont’d
	Miscellaneous
	Subscribe to the Bulletin
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	for joining us today

	Informational - FEMA ltr
	Informational - Seacoast Drinking Water Commission Charge and Minutes
	Charge for the Commission on Long Term Goals and Requirement Drinking Water
	Drinking Water Commission Meeting Notes - 14 Jan 21 (1)





